
Page 1 of 11 

Commonwealth Of Massachusetts 

County Of Dukes County, S.S. 

MARTHA'S VINEYARD AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 
  

January 21, 2004   6:00 pm 

Martha's Vineyard Airport 

Notice of Such Meeting having been Posted as Required by Law. 
  

Present:   
Airport Commissioners: Chair Jesse B. (Jack) Law, Vice Chair John Alley, Frank  Daly,   
    T. J. Hegarty, William (Bill) Mill, Nelson Smith, 
Airport Staff:                Bill Weibrecht - Manager, Sean Flynn - Assistant Manager,   
                                     Michael Eldridge – Water / Wastewater Operator 
Dukes County:             E. Winn Davis- County Manager;  
Others:                          Marni Lipke - Recorder 
Press:                            Fred Natush - MVTV 
                         * Late arrival or early departure (see * in text) 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:05 pm. 
 

1. Approval of Meeting Minutes  
• 6/18/03. 

MR. BILL MILL MOVED TO APPROVE THE JUNE 18, 2003 MINUTES;  MR. JOHN 

ALLEY SECONDED;  MOTION PASSED WITH MR. HEGARTY ABSTAINING. 

 

• 6/23/03. 

MR. NELSON SMITH MOVED TO APPROVE THE JUNE 23, 2003 MINUTES; MR. ALLEY 

SECONDED; MOTION PASSED WITH MR. HEGARTY ABSTAINING. 

           Mr. Hegarty stated he had just received the Minutes on January 13th.  
 
            • 7/16/03. 

MR. ALLEY MOVED TO APPROVE THE JULY 16, 2003 MINUTES; MR. MILL 

SECONDED; MOTION PASSED WITH MR. HEGARTY ABSTAINING. 

 

            • 8/6/03. 

MR. ALLEY MOVED TO APPROVE THE AUGUST 6, 2003 MINUTES; MR. SMITH 

SECONDED;  

 

Mr. Hegarty asked for discussion and stated that when he received this packet…one year ago the board 
wanted its minutes and agendas on the Fridays before each meeting. They were now voting on minutes 
from June 18, 2003, June 23, 2003, July 16, 2003, August 6, 2003. Granted Mr. Hegarty was not 
present when they were presented for review on January 7th, 2004 but this was a $2.5 billion dollar 
business and this seemed like a real Mickey Mouse way to do business, especially when the MVAC 
voted that they wanted minutes on the Fridays prior to their meetings. Chair Law stated that he had 
adjusted the agenda as there was not enough business to warrant a meeting and so the meeting was not 
called until Tuesday. Mr. Hegarty noted that they were minutes for June 18th, the 23rd, July 16th.  Chair 
Law asserted that Mr. Hegarty had asked about agendas and he was addressing that issue first.   



Page 2 of 11 

MARTHA'S VINEYARD AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 

January 21, 2004 

 
 

Chair Law continued on the issue of minutes Ms. Lipke had said that she would do the summer 
meetings as she could because she was busy doing everything else and she got to the Airport minutes 
as she could. Once the season got to December she got the minutes out right away but all summer the 
fact that she was so busy meant that she could not do the minutes right away. So actually if anybody 
needed minutes right away she managed to get them in but all summer she had stated right up front 
that she was very busy and could not do the minutes right away. He asked if everybody else 
understood that and there seemed to be a general assent. Chair Law said that was why it was like that. 
Mr. Hegarty stated that there was a lot of important stuff in the minutes and it seemed to get buried 
until the last minute and washed over. Chair Law noted that Ms. Lipke had a lot of other work going 
on and noted that the 12/3 and 1/7 meeting minutes were right there. She had a lot of other work going 
on in the summer.  It was hard to find someone to take minutes and Ms. Lipke did a good job and she 
had explained her situation from the beginning. Airport Manager Mr. Bill Weibrecht pointed out that 
the minutes were put out at the last meeting. Mr. Smith noted that he got minutes at the last meeting. 
Mr. Hegarty just wanted to let them know that he was on vacation and did not know the minutes were 
coming out. Mr. Weibrecht said that as soon as they were ready Management handed them out as they 
were actually finished two days prior to the last meeting, which was January 7th and as this was the 
package from the last meeting that Mr. Hegarty did not get, so Mr. Weibrecht felt he was doing the 
right thing by giving Mr. Hegarty the package.  Chair Law reiterated that this was the same as past 
practice, that Ms. Lipke was very busy in the summer time and that was the only reason they were late. 
As far as the agenda on Friday there did not seem to be enough business to warrant a meeting and 
Chair Law chose to wait until Tuesday to contact Mr. Weibrecht and call the meeting.  Just for the 
record, Mr. Smith stated he understood Ms. Lipke’s situation but he did share Mr. Hegarty’s concerns 
in terms of having things a little fresher for the MVAC.  He did not know what the MVAC could do 
but perhaps it could be discussed in the future. MOTION PASSED WITH MR. HEGARTY 

ABSTAINING.  

 
            • 10/15/03. 

MR. ALLEY MOVED TO APPROVE THE OCTOBER 15, 2003 MINUTES; MR. MILL 

SECONDED; MOTION PASSED WITH MR. HEGARTY ABSTAINING. 

 

• 12/3/03. 

MR. SMITH MOVED TO APPROVE THE DECEMBER 3, 2003 MINUTES; MR. MILL 

SECONDED; MOTION PASSED WITH MR. ALLEY AND MR. HEGARTY ABSTAINING.  
 
Mr. Hegarty stated he did not even have the documents.  Ms. Lipke reported they were sent out by 
email on December 9th.  
 

• 1/7/2004. 

MR. ALLEY MOVED TO APPROVE THE JANUARY 7, 2004 MINUTES; MR. MILL 

SECONDED; MOTION PASSED WITH MR. HEGARTY ABSTAINING. Chair Law stated the 
MVAC would address that situation. The draft November 5, 2003 Minutes were distributed for review 
and approval at the next meeting. 
 



Page 3 of 11 

MARTHA'S VINEYARD AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 

January 21, 2004 

 
 

2. Election of Airport Commission - Chairman 
 

On the Martha’s Vineyard Airport Commission (MVAC) election of Chair and Vice Chair, Chair Law 
first asked for a motion from the floor for nomination of Chair. MR. ALLEY MOVED MR. JACK 
LAW FOR CHAIR; MR. SMITH SECONDED.  Chair Law asked for any further nominations.  
MR. DALY ALSO MOVED MR. JACK LAW.  Chair Law asked for any one else and called the 
vote. MOTION PASSED WITH MR. HEGARTY ABSTAINING. 

 
3. Election of Airport Commission - Vice Chairman 
 

Chair Law next asked for election of the Vice Chair, MR. MILL NOMINATED MR. JOHN 
ALLEY; MR. DALY SECONDED. Chair Law asked for any further nominations and called the 
vote.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
4. Initial Budget Presentation – Review Only 
 

Chair Law explained that the initial budget proposal was presented for review (see documents on file) 
so that the Commissioners could take it home, look it over and be ready to ask any questions and go 
into detail at the next meeting. 
 
Assistant Airport Manager Mr. Sean Flynn started with the review of the revenue (see documents on 
file). He explained that on all of the hangar tenants (page 2 of 7)—whether some had grown or some 
had not— the current rents as they sat when the budget was being prepared were taken as the number 
that was used to calculate out the revenue for each tenant, rather than trying to forecast what the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) would be,. So the slight increase was seen. 
 
The same procedure was used for non-aviation leases. One drastic increase in VPI Continuos was the 
newly negotiated lease. This lease was voted on at the January 7th meeting and will be signed next 
week. The other point to be noted was the “A” Street credit at the bottom of the page showed that all 
credits to tenants for the infrastructure on “A” Street had been given back so that the it was no longer 
necessary to carry a credit line for those tenants that participated in the installation of the infrastructure 
on the  street (see 9/20/00 Minutes p.1 #5). Consequently a portion of the 10.9% increase was the 
removal of that “A” Street credit.  Mr. Mill asked what was VPI Continuos Corp. Mr. Flynn replied 
that it was Amerigas. 
 
Mr. Hegarty asked how the Vogel situation played into the situation, and if there weren’t a discrepancy 
or money owed. Mr. Flynn stated he had not been contacted by Mr. Vogel. Mr. Hegarty asked if there 
was some form of dispute between Mr. Flynn and Mr. Vogel. Mr. Flynn responded there was no 
dispute relative to his property. Mr. Hegarty continued that it was on work done on “A” Street for 
credit and did it play into the current point. Mr. Flynn replied that it did not. Mr. Vogel did make a 
claim that was last discussed maybe 18 months ago (see 8/21/02 Minutes p.1 #2 and 8/21/03 Executive 
Session Minutes). Mr. Hegarty asked where it was.  Mr. Flynn responded that it was not carried.  The 
MVAC voted it as an unsubstantiated claim and a letter was sent to Mr.  Vogel.  Mr. Hegarty asked if 
anything had been heard from him in response to the letter.  Mr. Flynn replied, no. 



Page 4 of 11 

MARTHA'S VINEYARD AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 

January 21, 2004 

 
 

Mr. Smith noted that Eddy Smith had gone to zero.  Mr. Flynn affirmed that this was correct he was no 
longer on that piece of property. Mr. Hegarty speaking of Eddy Smith’s lot asked if letters were ever 
sent to the interested parties.  Mr. Flynn replied that Management had talked to them and they were 
told that when the Request For Proposal (RFP) package was prepared for the next piece in the Business 
Park, it would be sent to them and that would be the information that needed to be provided to them 
and that was what Management was in the process of doing currently. Mr. Hegarty asked if that was in 
the form of a letter.  Mr. Flynn replied that no, it was not. Mr. Flynn noted Mr. Smith vacated one in 
April.  Mr. Hegarty asked him to repeat what he said.  Mr. Flynn explained that one of the 
Commissioners had asked him if Mr. Smith had vacated in April and Mr. Flynn had responded that it 
was actually now that Mr. Smith had vacated that piece so essentially there were two pieces, and 
Management would send out those packages to those people who were interested last time and the 
responses would be evaluated for the occupation of those lots. Mr. Hegarty said he thought the MVAC 
voted to send those lots out in September. Mr. Flynn replied that it was to prepare them.  Mr. Hegarty 
maintained that no, it was to send them out, and continued that if Mr. Flynn would look at the minutes 
he would see that he was supposed to contact the individuals and Mr. Hegarty was wondering why it 
was not done.  Mr. Flynn replied that they were contacted and they were informed that when the actual 
piece of paperwork that needed to be generated to fairly evaluate them was generated, they would 
receive a copy of it and to provide the information back so they could be fairly judged as to who 
should be awarded those lots. Mr. Hegarty asked again if that was done in writing. Mr. Flynn replied 
that it was done by phone conversations with each of the people that had applied at that point in time. 
Mr. Hegarty asked if that was in October, or September, or was it this month.  Mr. Flynn replied that it 
was right after that meeting. Chair Law asked if the minutes said it would be in writing Mr.  Hegarty 
noted there was a discrepancy, there was supposed to be a bid and the MVAC could not just award it 
and he thought the records were quite clear on that (no reference to written notice found see 9/3/03 
Minutes p.7-8). 
 
Still on page 3 of 7 Mr. Hegarty asked how the Vineyard Tennis Center Parking transfer was working 
out (see 11/5/03 Minutes p.23).  Mr. Flynn reported that the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 
had not responded back on that piece of property yet. Mr. Weibrecht had spoken with them as recently 
as last week. Mr. Hegarty asked if there was still no release.  Mr. Weibrecht repeated, there was still no 
release, that was correct. Mr. Alley noted that the Vineyard Tennis Center had expanded since last year 
and no rent increase was reflected in the projection. Mr. Flynn explained that this was what Mr. 
Hegarty was asking about.  The piece of land had not been released so the Airport could not actually 
award it to them and the RFP could not be processed. Mr. Weibrecht added that the building expansion 
was actually on the same piece of property.  Mr. Alley affirmed that he was thinking of the lot. Mr. 
Hegarty reminded him that the Tennis Center came in with the banker and the whole nine yards see 
1/8/03 Minutes p.1#1 and 3/19/03 Minutes p.1#1). Mr. Alley replied that he remembered. 
 
Nothing much had changed in Terminal revenue. Mr. Hegarty asked that before the Commissioners 
moved on there was a law suit that had been settled. Mr. Flynn affirmed an award was made for 
approximately $41,000 and the Airport was now attempting to collect on it (see 11/5/03 Minutes p.17). 
This was Mr. Hegarty’s question that had there been collection and had it been received. Mr. Flynn 
replied that it had not been received.  Mr. Hegarty assumed that interest was accruing from the date of 
the judgment.  Mr. Flynn replied that interest was accruing both prior and post award. Chair Law 
noting that the Court charged 12% after the judgment. Mr. Hegarty asked for confirmation that they  



Page 5 of 11 

MARTHA'S VINEYARD AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 

January 21, 2004 

 
 

had been served and were not in appeal.  Mr. Flynn confirmed that they had been served, and from 
what he understood were operating a shell game with the assets of that company so the attorneys were 
working with the Town of Bourne to find out what the corporate structure was for the parent company. 
Basically they would show that the parent company’s principals were the same so there would be a line 
of responsibility to the principal.  Mr. Hegarty asked if the Airport would have to do it all over again 
with the principal.  Mr. Flynn replied both yes and no; in that to collect the amount yes, but not to go 
through the entire judgment all over again.  Mr. Hegarty reconfirmed that it was in collection.  Mr. 
Flynn assented. County Manager Winn Davis explained that corporate responsibility was like 
gossamer and that Marilyn was working at it pretty diligently, and was keeping Mr. Davis up to speed 
on it as well.  Mr. Hegarty felt it had kind of dropped from the MVAC radar. Chair Law asked if there 
were any further questions on the terminal revenue. Mr. Hegarty apologized and asked if the above 
mentioned award was carried.  Mr. Flynn replied that it was not, as there was no guarantee that the 
Airport would get it, or in what form the Airport might get it or in what year the Airport might get it. 
  
Chair Law moved on to service revenue.  Mr. Flynn showed the only increase was in fuel revenue. 
Last year’s fuel revenue was approximately $940,000-$930,000 or there abouts. Taking into account 
what the costs of the new trucks would be Management thought the fuel revenue projection was a 
conservative number going forward from $720,000 to $850,000. Mr. Hegarty asked if the Airport had 
not gotten new trucks this summer. Mr. Weibrecht explained that this was what Mr. Flynn was saying, 
that the increased costs on the trucks…Mr. Hegarty asked if these were not new, new trucks.  Mr. 
Weibrecht replied they were brand new.  Mr. Hegarty explained that he was asking if there were 
additional trucks to the ones just bought. Mr. Weibrecht responded that the purchased trucks had been 
delivered and the MVAC was now starting to see that reflected in the budget. 
 
 Chair Law moved on to wastewater revenue. Mr. Flynn noted this basically reflected what was voted 
and it was an estimate based on allocations for those who had allocations and for municipal rates at 
whatever the actual use was.  Mr. Hegarty affirmed the Airport had a subtotal of $15,695 for Fiscal 
Year 04 to date.  Mr. Flynn said this was correct and it represented someone who consistently paid at 
the old rate, so when the new rates were finalized they would be sent bills back to July 1st they would 
be collected at the new rate.  Mr.  Hegarty asked him to run that by him again, he asked about the 
blank space and then the subtotal underneath it.  Mr. Flynn affirmed that the year to date was $15,695. 
 
Moving on to water revenue Mr. Flynn explained that again it was basically the same as wastewater 
above, as voted. The way the water revenue worked was: there was that quarterly fee which included 
5,000 gallons.  Management had separated out what that would equal and multiplied it out by the 
quarters that represented that number, plus what Management anticipated the purchase of the actual 
water would be minus the Airport share, the Airport being a large, large user. 
 
This was the review of the revenue side.  On the expenses, Chair Law suggested that he hoped that 
everybody instead of asking a lot of questions tonight would go over the numbers (not that they 
couldn’t ask any questions) but that the MVAC go over the numbers and next meeting the MVAC 
would have a detailed answer on everything, so if the Commissioners would just look at them and 
make their appropriate comments and the MVAC would go from there.  He asked if anyone had a  
 
 



Page 6 of 11 

MARTHA'S VINEYARD AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 

January 21, 2004 

 
problem with this.  There was general agreement. Chair Law asked everyone to take the draft home 
and at the next meeting ask the particular questions that they needed to ask. Mr. Flynn stated he would 
correct the pagination. 
 
5.  Water and Sewer Rates – Final Vote of the Commission 
 •  Tabled in December by the Commission for additional comments to be  

    received post advertisement. 
Mr. Weibrecht reported he had received one additional phone call requesting clarification on how the 
hangars would be billed. MR. JOHN ALLEY MOVED THAT THE MARTHA’S VINEYARD 

AIRPORT FORMALLY ADOPT THE RATES AS DISCUSSED AND PROPOSED IN THE 

NOVEMBER 5, 2003 MEETING AND AMENDED IN THE DECEMBER 5, 2003  MEETING, 

(SEE RESPECTIVE MINUTES AND SUPPPORTING DOCUMENTS ON FILE)  I. E. :  

• WATER OPTION 2 AND WASTEWATER OPTION 3,  

• AND TO BILL TENANTS FOR BACK WATER USE FROM JULY 1, 2003 TO DECEMBER 

31, 2003 AT COST—$15.84 PER 1,000 GALLONS;  

• AND TO CHARGE ALL TENANTS FOR AIRPORT BACK WATER USE PREVIOUS TO 

JULY 1, 2003 AT A FLAT RATE OF $331.26 PER YEARLY QUARTER; 

• AND THAT WATER CHARGES TO DUKES COUNTY BUILDINGS (INCLUDING THE 

SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT) BEGIN IN FY05 (I.E. JULY 1, 2004) WITH NO 

RETROACTIVE BILLING; MR. FRANK DALY SECONDED.  Mr. Hegarty asked to have the 
proposal written and formally submitted to the board. Mr. Alley however did not wish to drag the 
matter out any further.  Management stated they would prepare the documentation the following week.  
Chair Law called the vote. MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

6. New Business 
 

Mr. Hegarty stated he had been waiting since October for a ruling by counsel on the Keyland Kitchens 
matter (see 10/15/03 Minutes p.11-12).  Mr. Flynn reported that he had discussed the matter with 
Airport Counsel Marcia Cini today and that she would finalize her opinion and put it in writing. Mr. 
Hegarty charged that in the matter of Peter Rosbeck Counsel had been given an immediate opinion. 
Mr. Flynn explained that Counsel had given the information on the opinion to Management yesterday 
and had recently cleared other urgent Airport matters. Mr. Hegarty noted the Hot Tin Roof lease had 
been finalized in August and accused Mr. Flynn of delaying the matter.  Chair Law intervened stating 
that the matter was before Counsel and hence the delay was not Mr. Flynn’s fault.  Mr. Weibrecht 
offered to have Ms. Cini write a memo explaining the timing of the opinion. Mr. Alley stated he did 
not want a memo from the lawyer. Chair Law asserted it was not uncommon to have some matters put 
aside when more urgent issues came up and did not consider the delay to be undue.  –At this point it 
became clear that the audio tape was defective and there was a brief break while the tape was 
changed.— Mr. Hegarty stated that was fine, if Management could get it done and he could get the 
memo that would be great. Mr. Flynn assured the MVAC that he had been in contact with the tenant 
and kept him apprised of what has been going o and how long it had taken, and the tenant had 
expressed his concern but had understood the delay.  Mr. Hegarty asked if Mr. Flynn had ever sent the 
tenant a receipt for his payment in full. Mr. Flynn reported that the tenant had never raised that issue 
after Management had a sit-down discussion with him where the tenant understood that the document 
was not a statement but an invoice. And the canceled check was his receipt. Mr. Alley said one thing in 
 
 



Page 7 of 11 

MARTHA'S VINEYARD AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 

January 21, 2004 

 
defense of Management, that in his experience sometimes lawyers went to other hot button issues and 
other things were moved to the side.  Mr. Daly noted this was normal business practice.  Mr. Smith 
stated he also could speak to that.  
 
Chair Law asked for other new business. Manager Bill Weibrecht then gave an update.  
• Hoyle Tanner was expected to attend the February 4th MVAC meeting to update the MVAC on 
current projects they had been working on, including some of the draft material for the draft 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR). In this way the MVAC could start reviewing the current protion 
and the entire EIR material would not hit the Commissioners, necessarily, all at once. 
 
• The Airport received confirmation from the Secretary of State’s office regarding historical and 
archeological issues (see documents on file).  
- However the Airport had not yet heard back on some of the moth issues as regards what could be 
proposed for mitigation, however Management expected to hear back fairly soon. Mr. Hegarty noted 
that the moth looked good when he caught the report on TV the other day.   
 
• Rick Domas the Project Manager had had emergency hand surgery (referring to Chair Law’s 
fractured wrist Mr. Weibrecht noted it was perhaps the month for hands) so some of the reports were 
held up but Mr. Domas was now back in the office. 
 
• Mr. Weibrecht went down to visit Cogan Airways. At the last meeting Management and the MVAC 
discussed a desire and a concern regarding their service and how quickly the service would start,  the 
New York service especially needed to start early enough in the season to allow people to actually 
book the flights as they were reserving properties etc. Otherwise Island summer residents then would 
not fly and/or would make other plans to find a different way to come to the Island. Colgan was the 
prime lease holder and represented all the USAir Express carriers (USAir actually had up to four 
different carriers depending on how it was going); four different certificates actually served the 
Vineyard under the USAir banner.   
 
- The other big part of this issue, was not only to get the season started earlier but actually to continue 
the New York service on an all year round basis to LaGuardia and/or Newark which the Airport was 
sorely missing.  Colgan had agreed to review the issue again and to ask USAir specifically, who was 
their schedule master to re-review that service as well. (LaGuardia was a slot controlled airport and 
USAir owned the slots, so USAir basically would have to give the blessing to use one of USAir’s 
slots.) There was service during the winter time from Hyannis and Nantucket so the flight could stop 
here and then go on to LaGuardia but this would not effect Vineyard residents and users since the extra 
travel was on the other side of the trip. There were two big concerns (as well as some smaller ones) 
that Colgan had with all year round service to the Isalnd. 
 
 - 1) There needed to be a solution to the de-icing problem; Management had identified this before but 
it had now become a much bigger priority for the Airport. Currently if an aircraft put in at the Vineyard 
Airport and required de-icing, the Airport had limited or no capabilities—essentially none whatsoever 
as of today—so the aircraft could be stuck here indefinitely. There was no building big enough to put 
the plane in, nor was there a way to get the ice off the airplane, aside from Mother Nature. This was a 
major concern that the Airport as the service provider would have to address and the MVAC might 
consider whether it wished to entertain offering that service. (See also p. 8 below) 



Page 8 of 11 

MARTHA'S VINEYARD AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 

January 21, 2004 

 
-2) The other concern was the cost of hotels, etc.  If a party started off in another location and the plane 
got stopped here because of flow control problems at LaGuardia, Colgan / USAir would be responsible 
for accommodating those passengers that might be on the plane already. Even if the flight was only 
from Hyannis, if the passengers could not get back to Hyannis and could not go on to New York the 
Airline would have to put people up on the Island.  Management saw accommodation cost as much 
less of a problem now as far as obtaining favorable rates, especially as hotel usage was down –and 
these flights would be in the off season as well. 
 
All in all it was good news that Colgan wanted to take a look at Martha’s Vineyard.  They had 
contacted Mr. Weibrecht again at the end of last week looking for some new historical numbers as far 
as passenger emplanements for the New York market, so that was something positive for the Airport.   
  
• Last week Management has also started discussions and received a response back from Atlantic 
Coast Airways who served the Vineyard in the past to Dulles Airport as the United Express carrier.  
Atlantic Coast Airways was actually parting ways with United and going completely independent; the 
name of the new airline would in fact be Independence Air. This would be a brand new low cost, low 
fare airline (like Southwest Air—for lack of a better example). If they started up as they intended in the 
next six months, they were willing to take a look at the Vineyard market.  They would use a 
combination of regional jets and larger aircraft so it would give the Vineyard direct service to a hub 
and on line ticketing at least on a seasonal basis. Those have been the two positive responses. 
 
• Continental will not be returning again this season for a whole host of reasons from their side, but the 
Vineyard was not off the radar scope for the future. At their peak Continental carried as many as 8,000 
or maybe 9,000 passengers from the Vineyard to Newark. The nice part about Continental service was 
that it offered a lot of West Coast connections through Newark which the Vineyard did not currently 
have. USAir may take a look at the Newark market as well.   
 

Mr. Mill asked what would be needed to de-ice.  Mr. Weibrecht replied the machinery was about 
$100,000 new. (The problem with used machines was that they were usually very tired as Airports did 
not get rid of de-icers if they were still working.) So the investment was about $100,000 in  the 
machine; the cost on the glycol side depended on how much the Airport would be willing to take in 
and store.  The Airport was ahead of the curve environmentally as it had ramps designated  in certain 
areas for de-icing and the Airport would never approach even the initial chemical threshold.  To 
expand on this Mr. Weibrecht explained the Airport had a separated drainage system and further that 
the amounts that would be used at this point—only about a couple hundred or so gallons total—were 
well below the first environmental threshold of 100,000 gallons. In this regard the Airport would be in 
good shape. Mr. Hegarty asserted that what went on the planes had to be trucked out: pumped out, 
collected, rebottled and trucked out. Mr. Weibrecht replied that was correct, it would be trucked out as 
waste.  However some other procedures were possible where it could be mixed with rain water. The 
issue was: if the waste was distributed into a fresh water source chemical break down actually had a 
high oxygen demand. If mixed with more rain water it might be acceptable to go, for example to the 
treatment plant or what ever the case might be.  There were different ways to dispose of it legally and 
properly. Mr. Hegarty insisted that the least environmentally inflammatory way was to bottle it and 
ship it.  Mr. Weibrecht agreed but noted it would be a tank truck rather than bottles. Mr. Daly asked 
what the life of the truck would be.  Mr. Weibrecht replied it was probably 10 years for a solid truck.   

 



Page 9 of 11 

MARTHA'S VINEYARD AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 

January 21, 2004 

 
One of the issues was for the Airport  would be how much the truck would be used.  The bucket truck 
feature which was needed for height disbursement in de-icing could be used for other maintenance 
chores such as reaching light bulbs which currently had to be contracted out. Or it could also be used 
as a power washer. So there was some limited other uses. Mr. Daly confirmed that it was a truck 
serviced by a bucket loader.   
  
Mr. Weibrecht described it as a one piece unit where the hose and pipe came directly up with the 
bucket.  It basically took two operators, one went up with the bucket and one stayed in the truck as the 
driver of the vehicle. The truck circled the airplane and sprayed the glycol on to the surfaces. The 
trucks stored about 1200 gallons on board which was preheated.  
 
Mr. Daly also confirmed that the Airport would have a designated area that would have a catch system.  
Management corrected him that the Airport already had such a designated area with a 10,000 gallon 
storage tank that was designed in as part of the new terminal construction.  Mr. Alley stated this was 
correct. Mr. Daly asked if the Airport did not have a way to break the glycol down partially so it did 
not have to be trucked off.  Mr. Weibrecht stated that if it got premixed. One of the other options Mr. 
Weibrecht had described was that depending on its testing levels and how much there was—because 
remember it was mixing with rain water—depending on how much glycol was present in the mix and 
what the level of concentration was, it could actually be treated through the wastewater facility in 
certain circumstances. However as Mr. Hegarty had stated the most direct method would be to tank it 
off (which cost would be included in the charge to the airplane itself). Mr. Hegarty put it to the MVAC 
as why create an issue that just made the Airport a target for environmentalists and Land Bank issues 
and everything else that was going on.  It was better just to start out on the right foot to begin with.  
Mr. Weibrecht suggested this was what the system was designed to handle.  Mr. Alley thought 
Management and Commissioners were just pointing out all the options. 
 
 Chair Law asserted he would not like the lack of a de-icer to hold the Airport back from any of the 
negotiations with the airlines. Mr. Weibrecht noted that they had discussed this point a couple times, as 
far as knowing that this issue was an obstacle.  Management also knew that it was also an issue on the 
General Aviation (GA) side.  For example a lot of traffic on the GA side could use de-icing as well and 
ended up not doing trips to the Airport or changing their trip schedules because of the weather.  So 
Management made it very clear and plainly known that when an aircraft came to the Vineyard iced it 
would be stuck here. This was not always within the pilot’s control nor the company’s control. 
Passengers were late or there was a weather delay elsewhere—down line for example, going back to 
New York—and the aircraft was stuck here. The Airport really had no way to solve this problem. 
Chair Law asked if the Airport purchased a de-icer would the airlines be more likely to provide winter 
service. Mr. Weibrecht replied that absolutely that would be so, as it was one of the problems the 
airlines brought up in negotiations right out of the gate.  
 
Mr. Alley pointed out that the airlines also had to have a market. Mr. Weibrecht explained that the 
market was part of the problem. With USAir being in charge of the schedules, especially for New 
York,  right now they waited a long time before posting the schedule, sometimes as late as May 1st. So 
if a potential the summer person were looking at the NY Times or whatever from their end of things, 
from the O&D side, (that is from the origination of the trip) they would not know that the service was 
available.  The Airport when it got such calls would tell them yes USAir serves LaGuardia and the  

 



Page 10 of 11 

MARTHA'S VINEYARD AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 

January 21, 2004 

 
Airport knew there would be service from LaGuardia even though there was no schedule to book yet. 
However, the passenger often would not take a chance on waiting and so might make other 
arrangements or decide to go someplace else.  
 
Mr. Hegarty asked why Air New England and PBA were able to continue a modest schedule to New 
York City.  Mr. Weibrecht explained it had to do with time frame. If Mr. Hegarty remembered back 
pre-1978 there was de-regulations. Mr. Hegarty noted that PBA and Air New England worked since 
you could hop on a plane at 5:00 and be in the city at 9:00. Mr. Weibrecht agreed but stated travel 
habits changed. Mr. Flynn noted that Mesa Airlines picked it up after that for a few years.  Mr. 
Weibrecht went on to explain that once it disappeared because they had other fish to fry—for lack of a 
better term, the market changed and it was difficult to restart.  There was also a difference in cost 
bases. The marketing agreements which most of the regional carriers now had were dictated by the 
major carriers, so that if USAir did not want to serve the market it was very tough to keep the regionals 
in there. Once that service eroded or was stopped, and could not be relied on, the passenger changed 
their travel habits; they went through Boston or did whatever else  was needed, maybe drove to 
Providence. When Southwest’s appeared in the region there was also a change in equipment such that 
the major carriers and their contracts wanted the regional carriers to use small jets which the customers 
have become acquainted with—and to some extent this was an advantage since the plane could go 
farther faster, and were also quieter and more fuel efficient.  As some Commissioners might not know 
(as they were not on the MVAC at that time) prior to 9/11 USAir had just agreed to year round service 
for that year (2001) which would have been the first time in two seasons that the New York Service 
was kept going in the winter. Then after 9/11 hit everything changed. This was the first time that 
Management was starting to see airlines coming back into it. 
  
Mr. Alley suggested contacting the new Airline that served Logan, which he thought was called Blue 
Night.  Mr. Weibrecht identified it as Jet Blue which offered a different connection as well as Song 
which was a Delta spin-off or subsidiary.  The problem was that these lines were all trying to mimic 
Southwest service, but Southwest had a breadth of service and number of cities which the imitators did 
not.  Song was running to the North East and Florida and if a passenger wanted anything else there 
were no options. The problem with Jet Blue was the same, i.e. a limited market—although they had 
now added Denver and LA or rather Long Beach (the reliever Airport for LA). But again if you were 
looking to go some place such as Dallas it could not be done. Mr. Alley remembered that the Vineyard 
had People’s Express one summer and it was bought out by Continental. Mr. Weibrecht agreed noting 
that deregulation had changed everything. Mr. Hegarty remembered it was $158 round trip. 
 
 Chair Law suggested that Management look into purchasing a de-icer: what it would cost the Airport, 
what Management would think was an appropriate charge to de-ice the size of the airplane,  and what 
would be the probability that people would use it.  In other words to look into it, get it going, see what 
the Airport could do.  Mr. Weibrecht assented and pointed out that overtime it would recover the cost 
of the front money. Mr. Alley stated that if it helped attract year round service it was worth it to the 
Vineyard economy. Mr. Daly asked who paid for the service. Mr. Weibrecht replied that the airline 
would actually be charged on a per gallon basis or a minimum charge basis.  Mr. Daly asked if this 
would be per plane. Mr. Weibrecht responded it would be per de-icing or frosting when it could be 
done more efficiently, so the Airport might put a minimum charge at x amount as there was some cost 
to start the process, such as heating the fluid, etc.  



Page 11 of 11 

MARTHA'S VINEYARD AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING 

January 21, 2004 

 
 

Mr. Daly noted that the Airport had an area for planes to be de-iced and asked if it was at the end of the 
runway.  Mr. Weibrecht replied that no, it would actually be on the ramp and there would be one on 
the southeast ramp which would be closer. Pretty much at the Vineyard Airport there were not long 
lines of runway traffic so the tower worked well with the Airport and the wait time from the ramp to 
the runway was not an issue. In Boston this might be an issue because when the plane taxied out, even 
with the winter box in place, it might be number 5 for take-off so Boston tried to de-ice the plane 
closer to the runway. It was much better at the Vineyard Airport to de-ice the aircraft as soon as the 
passengers boarded since the Tower coordinated it so closely that at boarding time the Airport knew 
the plane was three minutes from take-off.  
 
 Mr. Daly asked that if Management did not anticipate any freeze ups as there was a lot of water in the 
system.  Mr. Weibrecht stated that no, particularly as the water would be mixed with glycol and was 
going into a pipe that was full of rain and was below ground. Mr. Daly checked that it was not a 
system that had given a lot of trouble in the past and that all the bugs had been worked out.  Mr. 
Weibrecht confirmed this. Chair Law asked if the product was environmentally safe.  Mr. Weibrecht 
affirmed this, particularly the type the Airport selected (airports could select the type they wished to 
use).  This choice was polypropylene glycol which was actually used in food processing, and was an 
ingredient of Dr. Pepper. Mr. Davis noted that mixed with purified water at 50/50 it kept perfect 
humidity. 
 

As a testament to all concerned at the meeting Mr. Hegarty related that he was sitting in Logan Airport 
and heard little titters, looked around and there, right next to the food court was a little mouse running 
around. It got through security and everything else.  Mr. Hegarty had to laugh, shook his head and  
said, “Thank God he lived on Martha’s Vineyard.”  
 

Mr. Flynn reported one thing that was not included in the budget draft was that the Airport’s un-
audited unreserved fund balance was $440,000, was carried over from last year, and was the amount 
the Airport’s revenues exceeded its expenses, i.e. there was a $440,000 surplus. 
 

Chair Law asked if there was any other business. 
 

7. Adjournment 
  
CHAIR LAW MOVED TO ADJOURN AT 6:50 PM; MR. ALLEY SECONDED; MOTION 

PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Condolences from the MVAC will be sent to Norm and a thank you letter to Mr. Balco. 
 

Documents on file: 

Agenda 1/21/04            
Boston Globe Editorial: Runway Requirements 1/17/04 
Mass. State Archeologist letter re: MV Airport Improvement Program 12/12/03 
Norman Perry contact sheet 
MVAC Commissioner’s phone list 1/21/04 
Draft Proposed FY 2005 Expenses 1/21/04 
MVY Airport FY 2005 Revenue Projections (Version 2.0) 


